
 

 

 
Date of issue: 19th August, 2014  

 
  

MEETING: LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 (Councillors Malik (Chair), Ajaib and Coad) 
  
DATE AND TIME: TUESDAY, 2ND SEPTEMBER, 2014 AT 10.00 AM 
  
VENUE: SAPPHIRE SUITE 5, THE CENTRE, FARNHAM ROAD, 

SLOUGH, SL1 4UT 
  
DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 
OFFICER: 
(for all enquiries) 

TERESA CLARK 
 
01753 875018 

 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 

 
You are requested to attend the above Meeting at the time and date indicated to deal 
with the business set out in the following agenda. 

 
RUTH BAGLEY 
Chief Executive 

 
 

AGENDA 

 
PART I 

 
AGENDA 
ITEM 

REPORT TITLE PAGE WARD 

 Apologies for absence.   
 
 CONSTITUTIONAL MATTERS 

 
1.   Declarations of Interest 

 
  

 All Members who believe they have a Disclosable 
Pecuniary or other Pecuniary or non pecuniary Interest in 
any matter to be considered at the meeting must declare 

  



 
AGENDA 
ITEM 

REPORT TITLE PAGE WARD 

 

 

that interest and, having regard to the circumstances 
described in Section 3 paragraphs 3.25 – 3.27 of the 
Councillors’ Code of Conduct, leave the meeting while the 
matter is discussed, save for exercising any right to speak 
in accordance with Paragraph 3.28 of the Code.  
 
The Chair will ask Members to confirm that they do not have 
a declarable interest. 
 
All Members making a declaration will be required to 
complete a Declaration of Interests at Meetings form 
detailing the nature of their interest. 

 
2.   Guidance on Predetermination/ Predisposition - 

To Note 
 

1 - 2  

3.   Minutes of the Last Meeting held on 29th April 
2014 
 

3 - 12  

 LICENSING ISSUES 
 

4.   Premises Licence Review, Metro Food and Wine 
(Slough Ltd), 18 High Street, Slough 
 

13 - 50 Langley 
Kedermister 

5.   Premises Licence Review, Baylis House, Stoke 
Poges Lane, Slough, SL1 3PB 
 

51 - 118 Elliman 

6.   Application for new Premises Licence, Gill's Meat 
Market, 20 Parlaunt Road, Langley, SL3 8BB 
 

119 - 150 Foxborough 

 
   

 Press and Public  
   

You are welcome to attend this meeting which is open to the press and public, as an observer. You will 
however be asked to leave before the Committee considers any items in the Part II agenda.  Please contact 
the Democratic Services Officer shown above for further details. 
 
The Council allows the filming, recording and photographing at its meetings that are open to the public.  
Anyone proposing to film, record or take photographs of a meeting is requested to advise the Democratic 
Services Officer before the start of the meeting.  Filming or recording must be overt and persons filming 
should not move around the meeting room whilst filming nor should they obstruct proceedings or the public 
from viewing the meeting.  The use of flash photography, additional lighting or any non hand held devices, 
including tripods, will not be allowed unless this has been discussed with the Democratic Services Officer.  
 

 



PREDETERMINATION/PREDISPOSITION - GUIDANCE 

 
The Council often has to make controversial decisions that affect people adversely and 
this can place individual members in a difficult position. They are expected to represent 
the interests of their constituents and political party and have strong views but it is also 
a well established legal principle that members who make these decisions must not be 
biased nor must they have pre-determined the outcome of the decision. This is 
especially so in “quasi judicial” decisions in planning and licensing committees. 
This Note seeks to provide guidance on what is legally permissible and when members 
may participate in decisions. It should be read alongside the Code of Conduct. 
 
Predisposition 
 
Predisposition is lawful. Members may have strong views on a proposed decision, and 
may have expressed those views in public, and still participate in a decision. This will 
include political views and manifesto commitments. The key issue is that the member 
ensures that their predisposition does not prevent them from consideration of all the 
other factors that are relevant to a decision, such as committee reports, supporting 
documents and the views of objectors. In other words, the member retains an “open 
mind”. 
 
Section 25 of the Localism Act 2011 confirms this position by providing that a decision 
will not be unlawful because of an allegation of bias or pre-determination “just because” 
a member has done anything that would indicate what view they may take in relation to 
a matter relevant to a decision. However, if a member has done something more than 
indicate a view on a decision, this may be unlawful bias or predetermination so it is 
important that advice is sought where this may be the case. 
 
Pre-determination / Bias  
 
Pre-determination and bias are unlawful and can make a decision unlawful. 
Predetermination means having a “closed mind”. In other words, a member has made 
his/her mind up on a decision before considering or hearing all the relevant evidence.  
Bias can also arise from a member’s relationships or interests, as well as their state of 
mind.  The Code of Conduct’s requirement to declare interests and withdraw from 
meetings prevents most obvious forms of bias, e.g. not deciding your own planning 
application.  However, members may also consider that a “non-pecuniary interest” 
under the Code also gives rise to a risk of what is called apparent bias. The legal test is: 
“whether the fair-minded and informed observer, having considered the facts, would 
conclude that there was a real possibility that the Committee was biased’.  A fair minded 
observer takes an objective and balanced view of the situation but Members who think 
that they have a relationship or interest that may raise a possibility of bias, should seek 
advice. 
 
This is a complex area and this note should be read as general guidance only. 
Members who need advice on individual decisions, should contact the Monitoring 
Officer. 

Page 1

AGENDA ITEM 2



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Licensing Sub-Committee – Meeting held on Tuesday, 29th April, 2014. 
 

Present:-  Councillors Davis, Rasib and Malik (Chair) 

  

Officers Present:-  Slough BC 
 
Ian Blake, Neighbourhood Enforcement Officer 
Teresa Clark, Senior Democratic Services Officer 
Dean Cooke, Senior Trading Standards Officer 
Rachael Rumney, Senior Licensing Officer 
Michael Sims, Licensing Manager 
Niall Toru, Solicitor 

  

Apologies for Absence:- Councillor Sohal 

 
PART 1 

 
31. Declarations of Interest  

 
Councillor Rasib declared that he had sat on a Sub-Committee in January 
2014, which had considered a review of the Premises Licence for Roshni 
Food and Wine, located at 18 High Street, Slough SL1 1EQ.  Councillor Rasib 
also advised that the application for Slough Food and Wine was in the 
Chalvey Ward for which he was Ward Member.  Councillor Rasib stated that 
he had an open mind in respect of the licensing application for Slough Food & 
Wine at 18 High Street, Slough, SL1 1EQ, and would participate in the 
decision process for the application. 
 

32. Guidance on Predetermination/ Predisposition - To Note  
 
Members confirmed that they had read and understood the guidance note on 
Predetermination and Predisposition. 
 

33. Minutes of the Last Meeting held on 30th January 2014  
 
Resolved – that the minutes of the meeting held on 30th January 2014 be 

approved as a correct record. 
 

34. Application for Premises Licence, Slough Food and Wine, 18 High  
Street, Slough, SL1 1EQ  
 
Following introductions the procedure for the hearing was outlined. The Chair 
confirmed that all parties had received a copy of the relevant paperwork. 
 
Introduction by Rachael Rumney, Senior Licensing Officer, Slough BC 
 
The Officer advised that following the application for a new premises licence 
for 18, High Street, Slough, by Mr Gulati, concerns were raised by the 
Licensing Authority, Thames Valley Police (TVP), Trading Standards, and the 
Neighbourhood Enforcement Team.  

Page 3

AGENDA ITEM 3



 

Licensing Sub-Committee - 29.04.14 

 

It was highlighted that following a review application, the premises licence for 
Roshni Food & Wine, 18 High Street, Slough, was revoked on 30th January 
2014. An appeal against the revocation had been lodged and was currently 
pending. The concerns related to the previous history of the premises which 
was currently trading as Roshni Food & Wine; the association between the 
Applicant, Mr Gulati, and the current premises holder for Roshni Food & Wine, 
Mr Chopra; and the lack of enforceable conditions to promote the four 
licensing objectives detailed in the applications operating schedule. 
 
A mediation meeting was held on 19th March 2014, between the Applicant, his 
representative, Mr Surendra Panchal, Michael Sims (Licensing Manager), 
Melanie Sagar (Licensing Officer), Debie Pearmain (TVP Licensing Officer), 
Rachael Rumney (Senior Licensing Officer), David Stride (Neighbourhood 
Enforcement Team) and Dean Cookee (Trading Standards Officer.) The 
purpose of the meeting was to review the application and the responses to it 
from the Licensing Authority, TVP, Neighbourhood Enforcement and Trading 
Standards and to discuss the association between Mr Chopra and the new 
applicant Mr Gulati. 
 
The Officer confirmed that the Applicant had agreed to all of the conditions 
proposed by TVP, including the implementation of a Challenge 25 policy, and 
that quarterly training would be carried out by an independent trainer. Mr 
Gulati also confirmed that Mr Chopra (the current licence holder for Roshni 
Food & Wine) would have no involvement in the running of the premises. 
 
The Officer summarised the representations made by the responsible 
authorities.  The Licensing Authority had requested that consideration be 
given to refusing the premises licence application but should the application 
be granted, several conditions were recommended as detailed in the report. 
It was noted that TVP and the Neighbourhood Enforcement Team also had a 
list of requested conditions. 
 
Mr Gulati had applied to be the Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) for 
Slough Food & Wine. It was confirmed that Trading Standards objected to Mr 
Gulati being nominated as DPS. 
 
The Officer reminded the Committee of its obligation to adhere to the relevant 
guidance, which included having regard to Chapter 9 of the amended 
guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 and in particular 
to paragraphs 9.17-9.19 (Licensing authorities acting as responsible 
authorities) and paragraphs 9.27-9.40 (hearings).  The Committee must also 
have regard to the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy 2014-2019, 
including paragraph 4.27 (hours of sale in off-licences). 
 
The Officer reminded the Committee of the actions it could take, i.e. 
 

1. Grant the application as it stood in which case it would be issued 
subject to the relevant mandatory conditions and conditions consistent 
with the applicants operating schedule. 

Page 4



 

Licensing Sub-Committee - 29.04.14 

 

2. Grant the application subject to further conditions which were 
reasonable, proportionate and appropriate in order to meet one or 
more of the four licensing objectives i.e. the prevention of crime and 
disorder; public safety; the prevention of public nuisance; and the 
protection of children from harm. 

3. Refuse the application. 
 
Michael Sims, Licensing Manager 
 
Mr Sims summarised the history of the premises, and the actions taken by 
Officers in light of this.  It was confirmed that the premises had been subject 
to two interventions for the sale of alcohol to minors and for the sale of illicit 
tobacco products. Mr Chopra was subsequently prosecuted, found guilty, and 
fined. On the occasion in question, the DPS was not present at the premises, 
in contravention to the stipulated conditions.  
 
At the review application heard by the Licensing Sub Committee on 30th 
January 2014, the premises was issued with a Red Card and the Premises 
Licence revoked. During this review hearing, Mr Chopra was represented by 
Mr Gulati.  Prior to the mediation meeting that was held in March 2014 to 
discuss the Slough Food and Wine application, Mr Chopra and Mr Gulati were 
investigated through Companies House records and a Police National 
Computer check.  At the mediation meeting Mr Gulati was asked whether he 
had any previous or current convictions, wherein he replied that he had not. 
TVP put to Mr Gulati that he did have convictions in 2004 for selling foods 
bearing false trademarks and infringement of copyright offence.  
 
In the same meeting, Mr Gulati was asked whether he had any kind of current 
or previous business relationship with Mr Chopra and he advised that he had  
not. It was then highlighted to Mr Gulati with supporting documentation that he  
had in fact had several previous and current business associations with Mr 
Chopra such as company directorships at retail outlets. The Officer concluded 
that Mr Gulati’s denial of these matters cast doubt on his integrity. 
 
Since Mr Gulati had nominated himself to be the DPS for the new application, 
the Officer expressed concern that Mr Gulati’s other business interests would 
impact on his ability to perform the duties of a DPS to the required extent. 
Further, the Officer was concerned that the close business relationship 
between Mr Gulati and Mr Chopra, made it difficult to accept that Mr Chopra 
would not be involved with the running of the business. Have regard to the 
historical evidence of Mr Chopra and the premises itself, the Officer was  
concerned  that further criminal offences may take place at the premises 
which would undermine the Licensing Objectives of the prevention of Crime 
and Disorder, Public Safety and the Protection of Children from Harm. 
 
In view of the concerns outlined, the Officer recommended that the application 
be refused. However, should a decision be made that the application be 
granted, further recommendations as to conditions were outlined as set out in 
the Officer’s report. 
 

Page 5



 

Licensing Sub-Committee - 29.04.14 

 

Questions to Michael Sims, Licensing Manager 
 
The Sub-Committee asked Mr Sims whether it was possible that Mr Gulati’s 
response to the question regarding his convictions could be attributed to the 
fact that he understood the convictions were spent and therefore not relevant. 
Mr Sims replied that all convictions, whether spent or not, were deemed 
relevant and it was expected that applicants would confirm all convictions 
when asked. 
 
The Committee also asked for clarification on when the new application was 
submitted and Mr Sims confirmed that Slough Food and Wine was registered 
with Companies House on the 12th February 2014, approximately two weeks 
after the Premises Licence for Roshni Food & Wine was revoked. The 
application for a Premises License on behalf of Slough Food & Wine was then 
submitted on the 5th March 2014. 
 
Mr Panchal, acting on behalf of Mr Gulati, highlighted that the application was 
for Slough Food & Wine, a separate business, and requested clarity as to why 
the Officers were referring to Roshni Food & Wine.  Mr Sims confirmed that 
recently it had become common practice that when a Premises Licence was  
revoked following a review application, primarily in relation to underage sales, 
seizures of illicit tobacco products and counterfeit alcohol, an appeal against 
the revocation would be submitted to the Magistrates Court.  Whilst the 
appeal was pending a new premises license application would be made and 
then subsequently withdrawn if the application was granted. The practice was  
legitimate but on two recent occasions this process had preceeded the 
seizures of illicit tobacco products and counterfeit alcohol. It was apparent that  
the previous licence holders were still heavily involved in the operation of the 
new premises. Due to the close business relationship between Mr Gulati and 
Mr Chopra, together with Mr Gulati’s responses to questions at the mediation 
meeting, these same concerns existed in relation to the application for Slough 
Food and Wine. Therefore the Officer concluded that discussion around 
Roshni Food & Wine and the history of the premises was relevant. 
 
Dean Cooke, Senior Trading Standards Officer 
 
Mr Cooke discussed the history of non compliance with licence conditions at 
the premises, which included an underage test purchase of alcohol, when 
minors were sold alcohol, and a test purchase of a single can of alcohol, when 
a Licensing Officer was sold a single can (in breach of one of the conditions of 
the premises Licence). A food standards inspection had revealed illicit 
tobacco at the premises and a further six breaches of licensing conditions 
were identified including a lack of CCTV training. Mr Chopra was prosecuted 
and plead guilty to ten counts relating to the sale of alcohol, and four counts  
related to the sale of tobacco. 
 
Mr Cooke confirmed that it was the aim of Trading Standards to ensure that 
such issues were not repeated in the future.  The Officer shared the concerns 
discussed regarding the close relationship between Mr Gulati and Mr Chopra 
and advised that Mr Gulati was secretary for one of Mr Chopra’s businesses. 

Page 6



 

Licensing Sub-Committee - 29.04.14 

 

He reported that when Roshni Food and Wine was first opened, both 
individuals were directors of the company, among other businesses. 
 
Mr Cooke considered that Mr Gulati’s responses to questions at the earlier 
mediation meeting reflected poorly on Mr Gulati’s integrity, and it was the 
opinion of the Officer that the way the application was submitted and handled 
was not congruent with the continued upholding and adherence to the law. 
The Officer concluded that the Trading Standards’ recommendation was that 
the application be refused. 
 
Questions to Mr Cooke 
 
Mr Panchal asked whether Mr Cooke had checked on the ownership of 
Slough Food and Wine and Mr Cooke confirmed that he had, and that the 
business was was wholly owned by Mr Gulati. However, the Officer confirmed 
that concerns remained owing to Mr Gulati’s continued relationships with Mr 
Chopra which in his opinion suggested that it was likely the same behaviours 
and practices seen at Roshni Food and Wine would continue at Slough Food 
and Wine. 
 
Ms Debie Pearmain, TVP Licensing Officer 
 
Ms Pearmain addressed the Sub-Committee and advised that in her opinion 
there was a history of disregard for the law at the premises, and that Mr 
Gulati’s integrity was in question following his answers at the mediation 
hearing. 
 
Further concerns were raised regarding Mr Gulati’s suitability to act as DPS 
for the premises, owing to Mr Gulati’s stated inability to properly converse in 
English. It was argued that such communication was of paramount 
importance to the role of the DPS, for example when challenging underage or 
drunk patrons, particularly in an area in which underage or street drinkers 
were common. 
 
The Officer concluded that TVP supported Mr Sim’s recommendation to 
refuse the application, but that were the licence to be approved, she 
recommended that such approval be subject to certain conditions as outlined 
in the report. 
 
Questions to Debie Pearmain, TVP Licensing Officer 
 
Mr Panchal asked whether TVP were happy with Mr Gulati’s agreement of 
new hours of sale for alcohol products.  Ms Pearmain advised that TVP were 
certainly happier with the new hours than the old. However, there remained 
concerns over Mr Gulati’s suitability to act as DPS for the premises. 
 
Ian Blake, Neighbourhood Enforcement Officer 
 
Mr Blake confirmed that Neighbourhood Officers regularly patrolled the area 
local to the premises, due to antisocial behaviour which included street 

Page 7



 

Licensing Sub-Committee - 29.04.14 

 

drinking and littering. The Officer recommended that should the Sub-
Committee approve the license application, that a Smart Water scheme be 
implemented so that the source of any litter and waste could be positively 
identified. 
 
Representations made by the Applicant 
 
Mr Panchal, of Personal Licence Courses Ltd (acting on behalf of Mr Gulati of 
Slough Food and Wine), addressed the Sub-Committee. He advised that Mr 
Gulati was a businessman, without any convictions excepting those which had 
occurred in  2004.  Mr Panchal advised that Mr Gulati was simply taking 
advantage of a business opportunity that had arisen and stated that he was 
allowed to have a business.  Mr Gulati had a share in the business and he 
would control the business. He had a refusals book and would operate under 
Challenge 25. Mr Gulati had a personal licence and would promote the 
required licensing objectives. Mr Gulati did not want Mr Chopra to run Slough 
Food and Wine and advised the Sub-Committee that the prosecution for 
Roshni Food and Wine was a separate concern. 
 
It was confirmed that Mr Gulati was happy to adhere to the recommendations 
made, such as Challenge 25 posters, Smart Water etc. It was pointed out that 
none of the Officers present had stated that Mr Gulati would be unable to 
adhere to the conditions of the licence.  Mr Panchal also confirmed that Mr 
Gulati owned 100% of Slough Food and Wine, and that Mr Chopra had no 
involvement in this business.  Mr Panchal questioned why the circumstances 
of Roshni Food and Wine was being brought into discussions around Slough 
Food and Wine and asserted that although Mr Gulati had other businesses 
which involved Mr Chopra, these were irrelevant to the discussion regarding 
the licence application for Slough Food Wine.  
 
In questioning whether Mr Gulati was able to promote the necessary 
Licensing objectives, Mr Sims responded that the content of the application 
was very short and he would have expected to see more detail in view of the 
Secretary of State’s guidance.  He also contended that the track record of 
Roshni Food and Wine was unacceptable and there was a clear association 
between Mr Gulati and that premises. Further, Mr Chopra would undoubtedly 
continue to have an involvement with Slough Food and Wine.  
 
Mr Panchal asked whether Mr Cooke was happy with the conditions attached 
to the licence and whether he felt that Mr Gulati could promote the 4 licensing 
objectives.  Mr Cooke stated that it was for the Sub-Committee to decide 
whether the Applicant could promote the objectives and if the licence was 
granted then Trading Standards would support the conditions imposed by 
Slough BC and TVP. 
 
Questions to the Applicant 
 
The Committee asked Mr Panchal how he could be sure that Mr Chopra 
would not be involved in the business of Slough Food & Wine.  He replied that 
Mr Gulati had confirmed this to him verbally. The Sub-Committee reminded  

Page 8



 

Licensing Sub-Committee - 29.04.14 

 

Mr Panchal that it was evident from the notes of the mediation meeting that  
Mr Gulati was known to not always present an accurate response.  
 
Members requested clarification regarding measures to ensure Mr Chopra 
would not be involved in the running of Slough Food and Wine.  Mr Panchal 
confirmed that the Sub-Committee could grant approval of the license with a 
condition that Mr Chopra should not be involved, should they wish. 
 
Members asked Mr Gulati to explain why he had stated during the mediation 
meeting that he had no present association with Mr Chopra.  Mr Gulati 
confirmed that this was due to not understanding the question properly, and 
stated that he was not fluent in English. 
 
It was then suggested to Mr Gulati that if he was not able to speak or 
understand English, he would have difficulty in communicating with patrons to 
the store, a key part of his role as DPS.  Mr Gulati confirmed that he would 
have staff who  were able to do this for him. 
 
Mr Panchal, on behalf of Mr Gulati, raised the point that it was his and his 
client’s understanding that the mediation meeting was to discuss the Smart 
Water scheme, and he was not aware that TVP or Trading Standards would 
be present, nor was he aware that there would be any questions pertaining to 
Mr Gulati’s association with Mr Chopra. As such, they were not prepared to 
answer any questions beside the topic of Smart Water. 
 
Ms Permain, TVP Licensing Officer, confirmed that the only response required 
was that of an honest response and that this should not have required any 
prior knowledge or preparation. 
 
Mr Panchal also confirmed, following questions from the Sub-Committee, that 
Mr Gulati was in the process of acquiring the premises, but that this was 
predicated upon Slough Food and Wine being granted a Premises Licence. 
Should this licence not be granted, then Mr Gulati would not continue with the 
purchase. 
 
Mr Panchal was asked whether he also represented Roshni Food and Wine, 
to which he replied that he did not. 
 
Mr Sims, Licensing Manager, asked for clarification as to how Mr Gulati would 
be able to fulfil the responsibilities of his role as DPS for Slough Food and  
Wine, in light of his other business responsibilities. Mr Panchal confirmed that 
Mr Gulati’s other businesses would not prohibit Mr Gulati from being present 
at Slough Food and Wine on  a full-time basis. 
 
Summing Up 
 
The Sub-Committee was reminded that when deciding the application, the 
Licensing Authority was obliged to give due consideration to all parties based 
on the information presented.   
 

Page 9



 

Licensing Sub-Committee - 29.04.14 

 

Mr Panchal, acting on behalf of Mr Gulati, asked Members to note that: 
 

• The Sub-Committee was convened to discuss the application for 
Slough Food and Wine, not the prior behaviour of Roshni Food and  
Wine, which was a wholly separate business. 

• Mr Gulati would fulfil all the licensing objectives, and had agreed to all 
conditions suggested. 

• Mr Gulati would adhere to the law at all times during the running of 
Slough Food and Wine. 

 
The Sub-Committee adjourned at 11.30 pm in order to reach its decision. 
 
The Sub-Committee re-convened at 12.10 pm when a summary of the 
decision was announced. 
 
Decision of the Licensing Sub-Committee 
 
The Sub-Committee rejected the application for a premises licence.  In 
reaching its decision the Sub-Committee had regard to the four licensing 
objectives, i.e. preventing crime and disorder, promoting public safety, 
preventing public nuisance and protecting children from harm 
 
The Sub-Committee was mindful that Roshni Food and Wine currently 
operates from 18 High Street, Slough and Mr Jagmohan Singh Chopra holds 
a premises licence for the sale by retail of alcohol, and is also the DPS.  Mr 
Chopra’s premises licence was revoked on 30 January, 2014 (suspended 
pending his appeal to the Magistrates’ Court).  The Sub-Committee noted the 
concerns set out relating to the revocation of Mr Chopra’s premises licence, 
which included sales of illicit tobacco, underage sales and breaches of 
conditions leading to criminal convictions, the convening of two review 
hearings and ultimately to the revocation of 30 January 2014. 
 
The Sub-Committee noted also the concern submitted by the responsible 
authorities that Mr Gulati was too closely related to the existing business and 
therefore to its very poor licensing history.  It was argued that were Mr Gulati 
to be granted a licence, that it would be very likely that those types of 
breaches would continue at the premises. 
 
The Sub-Committee was concerned that Mr Gulati had when questioned not 
revealed any business connections with Mr Chopra, contrary to the evidence 
from Companies House which indicated that Mr Gulati and Mr Chopra had 
been joint officers of six limited companies, all retail companies (of which at 
least five appeared to be convenience stores).   
 
The Sub-Committee noted the explanation given that a new company, Slough 
Food and Wine Ltd, was incorporated in February 2014, and that Mr Gulati 
was the sole director and shareholder.  Members noted the explanation  
submitted that if the application were granted that Mr Gulati would purchase 
the business known as Roshni Food and Wine and transfer it to this new 
company, and that Mr Chopra would have no involvement with this new 

Page 10



 

Licensing Sub-Committee - 29.04.14 

 

company or the running of the business.  It was also noted that Mr Gulati had 
agreed to all of the conditions suggested by TVP. 
 
In reaching its decision the Sub-Committee was mindful of the guidance 
issued by the Secretary of State which stipulates that the Sub-Committee 
must have regard to any potential negative impacts on the promotion of the 
licensing objectives and the track record of the business.  
 
The Sub-Committee was concerned that although Mr Gulati had stated 
otherwise, from the evidence submitted, he had and continued to have a close 
business relationship with Mr Chopra, of Roshni Food and Wine. The Sub-
Committee therefore accepted on balance that there was a likelihood that Mr 
Chopra would have involvement in the operation of Slough Food and Wine, 
thereby resulting in further non-compliance with the licensing conditions. This 
in turn would have a negative impact on the necessary promotion of the 
licensing objectives.  
 
The Sub-Committee was also concerned with the Applicant’s lack of co-
operation with the responsible authorities, which it considered undermined his   
application and ability to promote the licensing objectives.  This was 
demonstrated by his failure to disclose his business connections with Mr 
Chopra and the previous convictions for selling goods bearing false 
trademarks and for the infringement of copyright.   
 
 

Chair 
 
 
(Note: The Meeting opened at 10.00 am and closed at 12.20 pm) 
 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Review Application Report 

 

Licensing Sub Committee: 
2nd September 2014 

 

Contains Confidential or 
Exempt Information 

No 

Report Title 
 

Premises Licence Review hearing 

Premises Details METRO FOOD AND WINE (SLOUGH) LIMITED 
18 High Street,  
Slough.  
SL1 1EQ 
 
Premises Licence Number PL5277 
 

Author(s) Rachael Rumney 
Senior Licensing Officer 
Enforcement and Regulatory Services 
 

Purpose of Report Regulatory / Review Hearing for premises licence 

 
 
1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1 On the 2nd  July 2014, the Licensing Manager on behalf of the Licensing 

Authority brought a Review of the Premises Licence for Metro Food and Wine, 
(Slough) Limited, 193 Farnham Road, Slough, SL1 4XS. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 The Sub Committee are asked to determine the Application.   
 
2.2 Where the Sub Committee considers action is appropriate the options 

available are: 
 
2.2.1 modify the conditions of the premises licence (which includes adding new 

conditions or any alteration or omission of an existing condition), for example, 
by reducing the hours of opening or by requiring door supervisors at particular 
times; 

2.2.2 exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence, for example, to 
exclude  
the performance of live music or playing of recorded music (where it is not 
within the incidental live and recorded music exemption); 

2.2.3 remove the designated premises supervisor, for example, because they 
consider that the problems are the result of poor management; 

2.2.4 suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months; 
2.2.5 revoke the licence. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 13

AGENDA ITEM 4



Review Application Report 

3. PRINCIPLES FOR MAKING DECISIONS 
 
           Context 
 
3.1 As quasi-judicial body the Committee is required to consider this matter on its 

merits and must act reasonably and rationally.  The Committee can only take 
into account relevant factors and must ignore irrelevant factors.  The decision 
must be based on evidence, that is to say material, which tends logically to 
show the existence or non-existence of the relevant facts, or the likelihood or 
the unlikelihood of some future event, the occurrence of which would be 
relevant.  The Committee must give fair consideration to the contentions of all 
persons entitled to make representation to them. 

 
3.2 The Committee can only consider matters within the report and any relevant 

representations made at the hearing.  
 
3.3 Members should note that the Committee is meeting on this occasion solely to 

perform the role of licensing authority.  As such Members should disregard the 
Council’s broader policy objectives and role as statutory authority in other 
contexts.  Members must direct themselves to making a determination solely 
based upon the licensing law, guidance and the Council’s related policies and 
guidance.  

 
3.4 Members will be aware of the Council’s Code of Conduct which requires them 

to declare interests.  The Code applies to members when considering 
licensing issues.  In addition as a quasi-judicial body, members are required to 
avoid both actual bias and the appearance of bias. 

 
           Human Rights & Equality Act Duties 
 
3.5 In determining the case, the Committee should be aware of and take into 

account any implications that may arise from the Human Rights Act 1998 and 
Sc 149 Equality Act 2010.  The 1998 Act makes it unlawful for a public 
authority to act in a manner which is incompatible with the European 
Convention on Human Rights.   

 
3.6 When determining the case and considering imposition of conditions the 

Committee must be satisfied that any decision which interferes with the rights 
of the applicant or of others only does so insofar as it is necessary to protect 
the rights of others and that no alternative decisions would be appropriate. 

 
3.7 The Committee is specifically referred to the following Convention rights: 
 
3.7.1 Article 6 (the right to a fair trial),  
3.7.2 Article 8 (the right to respect for private and family life) 
3.7.3 Article 1 of the First Protocol (the protection of property) 
 
4. RELEVANT POLICY AND LEGISLATION CONSIDERATIONS 
 
4.1 The procedure to be followed for the Review hearing is attached at Appendix 

E. 
 

Page 14



Review Application Report 

4.2 The amended guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 
was published in June 2014, paragraph 11 and the salient points that the 
Committee must have regard to for Review Applications are detailed below: 

 
“11.1 The proceedings set out in the 2003 Act for reviewing premises licences and club 
premises certificates represent a key protection for the community where problems 
associated with the licensing objectives occur after the grant or variation of a premises 
licence or club premises certificate. 
 
11.2 At any stage, following the grant of a premises licence or club premises certificate, a 
responsible authority, or any other person, may ask the licensing authority to review 
the licence or certificate because of a matter arising at the premises in connection with 
any of the four licensing objectives. 
 
11.10 Where authorised persons and responsible authorities have concerns about problems 
identified at premises, it is good practice for them to give licence holders early warning of 
their concerns and the need for improvement, and where possible they should advise the 
licence or certificate holder of the steps they need to take to address those concerns. A 
failure by the holder to respond to such warnings is expected to lead to a decision to apply 
for a review. Co-operation at a local level in promoting the licensing objectives should be 
encouraged and reviews should not be used to undermine this co-operation.” 
 
Powers of a licensing authority on the determination of a review 
 
11.16 The 2003 Act provides a range of powers for the licensing authority which it may 
exercise on determining a review where it considers them appropriate for the promotion of 
the licensing objectives. 
 
11.17 The licensing authority may decide that the review does not require it to take any 
further steps appropriate to promote the licensing objectives. In addition, there is 
nothing to prevent a licensing authority issuing an informal warning to the licence 
holder and/or to recommend improvement within a particular period of time. It is 
expected that licensing authorities will regard such informal warnings as an important 
mechanism for ensuring that the licensing objectives are effectively promoted and that 
warnings should be issued in writing to the licence holder. 
 
11.18 However, where responsible authorities such as the police or environmental health 
officers have already issued warnings requiring improvement – either orally or in 
writing – that have failed as part of their own stepped approach to address concerns, 
licensing authorities should not merely repeat that approach and should take this into 
account when considering what further action is appropriate. 
 
 
11.20 In deciding which of these powers to invoke, it is expected that licensing authorities 
should so far as possible seek to establish the cause or causes of the concerns that 
the representations identify. The remedial action taken should generally be directed at 
these causes and should always be no more than an appropriate and proportionate 
response. 
 
11.21 For example, licensing authorities should be alive to the possibility that the removal 
and replacement of the designated premises supervisor may be sufficient to remedy a 
problem where the cause of the identified problem directly relates to poor management 
decisions made by that individual. 
 
11.22 Equally, it may emerge that poor management is a direct reflection of poor company 
practice or policy and the mere removal of the designated premises supervisor may 
be an inadequate response to the problems presented. Indeed, where subsequent 

Page 15



Review Application Report 

review hearings are generated by representations, it should be rare merely to remove 
a succession of designated premises supervisors as this would be a clear indication of 
deeper problems that impact upon the licensing objectives. 
 
11.23 Licensing authorities should also note that modifications of conditions and exclusions 
of licensable activities may be imposed either permanently or for a temporary period of 
up to three months. Temporary changes or suspension of the licence for up to three 
months could impact on the business holding the licence financially and would only be 
expected to be pursued as an appropriate means of promoting the licensing objectives.  
So, for instance, a licence could be suspended for a weekend as a means of deterring 
the holder from allowing the problems that gave rise to the review to happen again. 
However, it will always be important that any detrimental financial impact that may result from 
a licensing authority’s decision is appropriate and proportionate to the promotion of the 
licensing objectives. But where premises are found to be trading irresponsibly, the licensing 
authority should not hesitate, where appropriate to do so, to take tough action to tackle the 
problems at the premises and, where other measures are deemed insufficient, to revoke the 
licence.” 

 
4.3 Paragraphs 11.16 to 11.23 of the section 182 Guidance are also relevant as 

they cover reviews arising in connection with crime.  In particular paragraph 
11.27 states: 

 
“There is certain criminal activity that may arise in connection with licensed premises which 
should be treated particularly seriously. These [include] the use of the licensed premises… 
for the sale of smuggled tobacco and alcohol” 

 
4.4 The committee should also consider and make use of the ‘Yellow and Red 

Card’ system as directed and recommended by The Department of Culture, 
Media and Sport (DCMS) and as approved by the Licensing Committee. 

 
4.5 The committee must also have regard to Slough Borough Council’s Statement 

of Licensing Policy 2014-2015. 
 
5. LICENCE SUMMARY  
 
5.1 Metro Food and Wine (Slough) Limited is the Premises Licence Holder and 

named Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) is Mr Kulwant Singh Gaga, 
who holds a Personal Licence (number LBHIL1773) issued by the London 
Borough of Hillingdon. 

 
5.2 The DPS is responsible for the day to day management of the premises. 
 
5.3 The Premises Licence authorises the carrying out of the Relevant Licensable 

Activities as follows: 
 

M - The sale by retail of alcohol for consumption Off the premises only 
 
5.4 The times the Licence authorises the Licensable Activities are: 
 

Monday to Sunday      -  08.00am to 02.00am 
 

A copy of the current Premises Licence is attached at Appendix A. 
 
 

Page 16



Review Application Report 

6. REASON FOR REFERRAL: REWIEW APPLICATION  
 
6.1 The Applicant asking for the Review is the Council’s Licensing Manager on 

behalf of the Licensing Authority.  Any responsible authority may apply for a 
review of a premises licence if it is concerned about licences activities.  Where 
a Licensing Authority does act as a responsible authority and applies for a 
review, there must be a separation of responsibilities to ensure procedural 
fairness and eliminate conflicts of interest.  The Council has complied with the 
guidance issued under sc 182. 

 
6.2 The Applicant maintains that the Review is necessary “as this is the second 

such occasion that Mr Gaba has been subject of possession of illegal 
           products and clearly shows his total disregard for the law and for public health 
           and safety as counterfeit alcohol, and illegal cigarettes can pose a serious 
           health hazard to any member of the public that purchases them.” 
 
6.3      The applicant’s recommendation because of the illegal activities that continue 
           to take place at the premises is that the Premises should be issued with a Red 
           Card and the Premises Licence revoked. The reasoning for this is the 
           History and track record of the premises, particularly with regards to Mr 
           Gaba’s involvement in the business.  
 
6.4      The grounds for the Review Application being made are the Licensing 
           Objectives of the Prevention of Crime and Disorder and Public Safety. The 
           applicant does not feel that there are any conditions that can be imposed on 
             the licence by the Licensing Sub Committee that would promote the 
           four Licensing Objectives or to combat the illegal activities taking place. The 
           full Review Application and supporting evidence are contained at Appendix 
           B. 
 
6.5      The Licensing Authority is satisfied that this application for Review meets the 

appropriate legislative requirements within the Licensing Act 2003 and is 
therefore a valid application to be considered by the Licensing Sub-Committee 

 
6.6      Responsible authorities may ask for a review because of a matter or matters 

arising at the premises in connection with any of the four licensing objectives.  
Such matters may include:  

 

• 1 or more sales to minors of alcohol or any other age restricted product 

• Reports of anti-social behaviour linked to the premises 

• Evidence of proxy sales 

• Sales of alcohol outside trading hours 

• Other crime and disorder connected to the premises 

• Sales of counterfeit or substitute goods 

• Offences under the Licensing Act 2003 including breach of conditions 
 

6.7      The grounds for the Review are: 
 

1. The Prevention of Crime and Disorder,  
2. Public Safety   

 
6.8     The applicant asserts the following in support of the Review Application: 

Page 17



Review Application Report 

 
6.8.1 Since 2007 the previous licence holder, the current licence holder, Mr Gaba 

and the company have been prosecuted for possession of counterfeit alcohol 
and illegal cigarettes on a number of occasions. 

 
6.8.2 The most recent seizure was on 8th January 2014 where 150 packets of illegal 

cigarettes were seized. 
 
6.8.3 The Previous history and current operation of the previous clearly show 

continued illegal activities taking place. 
 
6.9 In light of the above assertions, the applicant is of the opinion that the only 

course of action that can be taken to address continued illegal activities is for 
the Premises Licence to be revoked. 

 
7      BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
7.1. The application sets out the following background information.  
 
7.2. In 2007 the previous licence holder was convicted of possession of counterfeit 

alcohol and in 2009 he was further convicted along with a staff member and 
the company for possession of illegal cigarettes.  

 
7.3. Mr Gaba became the owner of the business in November/December 2009. 
 
7.4. On 29th April 2010 Trading Standards officers seized counterfeit Bollinger 

Champagne from the premises and both Mr Gaba and Metro Food and Wine 
Limited were prosecuted and convicted of a number of offences relating to this 
seizure. 

 
7.5. In May 2010 Mr Gaba made application to transfer the Premises Licence, vary 

the DPS to himself and change the name of the premises to Metro Food and 
Wine (Slough) Limited. 

 
7.6. On 8th January 2014 Trading Standards officers again visited the premises 

and seized 150 packets of illegal cigarettes which were hidden under shelving 
in the front store. All the cigarettes carried no English health warnings and 
bore no statutory pictorial health warnings. 

 
7.7. Possession of the above items constitute offences under the Tobacco 

Products (Manufacture, Presentation and Sale) (Safety) Regulations 2002, 
Tobacco Products (manufacture, Presentation and Sale)(Safety) Regulations 
2007 and the Consumer Protection  Act 1987. 

 
7.8. Mr Gaba will be subject of legal proceedings for possession of the above  

illegal cigarettes. 
 
8      REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED 
 
8.1     A full response to the Review Application has been received from Debie  
          Pearmain the Thames Valley Police Licensing Officer in support of the 
          application and the recommendation of revocation. The full response is 

Page 18



Review Application Report 

          attached at Appendix C 
 
8.3     A full response has also been received from Mr Dean Cooke on behalf of  
         Trading Standards as a Responsible Authority again supporting the application 
         and recommending a Red Card being issued. The full response is attached at  
         Appendix D.  
 
8.4     A response has been received from Royal Berkshire Fire and Rescue Service 
         with no comments. 
 
APPENDICES 
 
Appendix A  -  Copy of Premises Licence for Metro Food and Wine (Slough) Limited 
                        PL5377 
 
Appendix B  -  Review Application and supporting information made by Michael Sims 
                        -  Licensing Manager 
 
Appendix C  -  Response / Representation from Thames Valley Police. 
  
Appendix D  -  Response / Representation from Trading Standards 
  
Appendix E  -  Procedure for a Licensing Sub Committee hearing  
 
 
Background Papers 
 
- The Licensing Act 2003 
 
- Guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 - (Revised June 

2014) 
 
- Regulations (cited as the Licensing Act 2003 ([Various]) Orders 2005 
 
- Slough Borough Council Statement of Licensing Policy - December 2014 
 
- DCMS Guidance – Red and Yellow Card System 
 
- LACORS Guidance to Trading Standards as a Responsible Authority: Reviews 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

APPENDIX C 
Responsible Authority Representation Form 

 
Thames Valley Police, Royal Berkshire Fire and Rescue Service, Health and 
Safety Executive, Area Child Protection Committee, Slough Borough Council 
[SBC] Commercial Services (Health and Safety and Trading Standards), Planning 
and Development Control Services [SBC], Public Health Services [SBC]. 
 
 
APPLICATION DETAILS 
 
 
Name of Premises 
 

 
 
Metro Food and Wine (Slough) Limited 
 

 
Address of Premises 
& Tel: No. 
  
 

 
193 Farnham Road 
Slough 
Berkshire 
SL1 4XS 
 
 

 
Applicant Details 
(Name, address, Tel: 
No.) if different from 
above 
 

 
Mr Kulwant Singh Gaba 

 
Company Name (if 
different from Applicant) 
  
 

 
 
Thames Valley Police Licensing 
 
 

 
Application type 
(state fully) 
 

 
Review of Premise Licence 
 
 
 

 
Date Application 
received 
 

 
2nd July 2014 

 

Page 41



 
REPRESENTATION SUBMISSION 
 
                                                    Please tick  
   

There are no representations to the granting of this licence 

 

 

 
 
 

If you are making representations to the application identify which of the four 
licensing objectives  your representation relates to: 

Please detail your representation and the reason together with your supporting 
evidence, as appropriate.  (If replying by hard copy, please attach separate sheet(s) if 
necessary ).  

 

Prevention of Crime 
and Disorder 

 

 

Please tick 

√ 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Public Safety 

 

 

 

√  

 

 

 

 

 

Prevention of Public 
Nuisance 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

Protection of Children 
from Harm 

 

  

 

 

 

 

Page 42



 

Please provide advice to the Licensing Sub-Committee on how you believe they 
should consider the representation.    

If appropriate, recommend conditions that could be added to the Licence to remedy 
your representation or other suggestions you would like the Licensing Sub-Committee 
to take into account.    

If replying by hard copy, please attach separate sheet(s), if necessary.  

Please refer to the Responsible Authority Guidance Note. 

Thames Valley Police Licensing fully support Slough Borough Council in this review 
application. There have been issues historically with Counterfeit alcohol and staff at the 
premise being convicted of possession of illegal cigarettes.  

The current Premises Licence Holder and DPS, Kulwant Singh Gaba, is currently being 
investigated for offences by Trading Standards, with the investigation ongoing, when 
illegal cigarettes were found on the premise in January 2014. This is the second 
occasion that Mr Gaba has been found with such products in the premise.  

Mr Gaba clearly has no regard for the law, Authorities or the licensing objectives, the 
prevention of crime and disorder and public safety being undermined.   

Thames Valley Police fully support Slough Borough Council’s recommendation for the 
premises licence to be revoked. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Name of Officer 
completing 
Representation 

Debie Pearmain 

Job Title Police Licensing Officer 

Name of Responsible 
Authority 

Thames Valley Police 

E-mail address: 

Tel: No. 

Debie.pearmain@thamesvalley.pnn.police.uk 

 
N.B. If you do make a representation you will be expected to attend the Licensing 

Sub-Committee hearing and any subsequent appeal proceedings. 
 
 
Signed: Debie Pearmain 
 
Dated: 14th July 2014 
 

Page 43



Please return this form along with any additional sheets, if replying by hard copy to: 
 

The Licensing Team 
Public Protection Services 
Landmark Place 
High Street    
Slough    
SL1 1JL     Or  E-mail to Licensing@Slough.gov.uk
 

Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



  

 

APPENDIX E 
 

PROCEDURE FOR LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 

 

1. The Chairman will open the meeting and introduce those present, including 
members of the Committee, and ensure that all parties are informed of the 
procedure to be followed. 

 
2. The Committee will consider any request made by a party for permission for a 

person other than his representation as stated in his notice that he intends to 
attend or be represented at the hearing. 

 
3. The Licensing Officer will introduce the report and outline the application. 
 
4. The police, responsible authorities and interested parties if represented at the 

Committee may present relevant facts. 
 
5. The Chairman will invite questions from the  
 

• Applicant or representative 

• Committee 
 
6. The applicant or representative will present his case and call any other persons 

invited to appear to make representations. 
 
7. The Chairman will invite questions from 
 

• The police, responsible authorities and interested parties  

• The Committee 
 
8. The police, responsible authorities and interested parties will make any closing 

remarks to the Committee if they so wish. 
 
9. The applicant or representative will make any closing remarks to the Committee if 

he so wishes. 
 
10. The Committee may then decide the matter in private in which case all persons 

other than the legal adviser and Committee Clerk will then withdraw from the 
meeting. 

 
11. The parties will be recalled and the Chairman will announce the Committee’s 

decision and the reasons for reaching that decision. 
 
 

Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank



Review Application Report 

 

Licensing Sub Committee 
2nd September 2014 

 

Contains Confidential 
Exempt Information 

No 

Report Title 
 

Premises Licence Review hearing 

Premises Details BAYLIS HOUSE 
Stoke Poges Lane 
Slough 
SL1 3PB 
 
Premises Licence Number PL4603 
 

Author(s) Mick Sims 
Licensing Manager  
Enforcement and Regulatory Services 
 

Purpose of Report Regulatory / Review Hearing for Premises Licence 

 
 
1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1 On the 2nd July 2014,  Mrs Debie Pearmain - Thames Valley Police Licensing 

Officer applied for a Review of the Premises Licence for Baylis House, Stoke 
Poges Lane, Slough, SL1 3PB under Section 51 of the Licensing Act 2003.  

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 The Sub Committee are asked to determine the Application.   
 
2.2 Where the Sub Committee considers action is appropriate the options 

available are: 
 
2.2.1 modify the conditions of the premises licence (which includes adding new 

conditions or any alteration or omission of an existing condition), for example, 
by reducing the hours of opening or by requiring door supervisors at particular 
times; 

2.2.2 exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence, for example, to 
exclude 
the performance of live music or playing of recorded music (where it is not 
within the incidental live and recorded music exemption); 

2.2.3 remove the designated premises supervisor, for example, because they 
consider that the problems are the result of poor management; 

2.2.4 suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months; 
2.2.5 revoke the licence. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 51

AGENDA ITEM 5



Review Application Report 

3. PRINCIPLES FOR MAKING DECISIONS 
 
           Context 
 
3.1 As quasi-judicial body the Committee is required to consider this matter on its 

merits and must act reasonably and rationally.  The Committee can only take 
into account relevant factors and must ignore irrelevant factors.  The decision 
must be based on evidence, that is to say material, which tends logically to 
show the existence or non-existence of the relevant facts, or the likelihood or 
the unlikelihood of some future event, the occurrence of which would be 
relevant.  The Committee must give fair consideration to the contentions of all 
persons entitled to make representation to them. 

 
3.2 The Committee can only consider matters within the report along with relevant 

representations made at the hearing.  
 
3.3 Members should note that the Committee is meeting on this occasion solely to 

perform the role of licensing authority.  As such Members should disregard the 
Council’s broader policy objectives and role as statutory authority in other 
contexts.  Members must direct themselves to making a determination solely 
based upon the licensing law, guidance and the Council’s related policies and 
guidance.  

 
3.4 Members will be aware of the Council’s Code of Conduct which requires them 

to declare interests.  The Code applies to members when considering 
licensing issues.  In addition as a quasi-judicial body, members are required to 
avoid both actual bias and the appearance of bias. 

 
           Human Rights & Equality Act Duties 
 
3.5 In determining the case, the Committee should be aware of and take into 

account any implications that may arise from the Human Rights Act 1998 and 
Sc 149 Equality Act 2010.  The Act 1998 makes it unlawful for a public 
authority to act in a manner which is incompatible with the European 
Convention on Human Rights.   

 
3.6 When determining the case and considering imposition of conditions the 

Committee must be satisfied that any decision which interferes with the rights 
of the applicant or of others only does so insofar as it is necessary to protect 
the rights of others and that no alternative decisions would be appropriate. 

 
3.7 The Committee is specifically referred to the following Convention rights: 
 
3.7.1 Article 6 (the right to a fair trial),  
3.7.2 Article 8 (the right to respect for private and family life) 
3.7.3 Article 1 of the First Protocol (the protection of property) 
 
4. RELEVANT POLICY AND LEGISLATION CONSIDERATIONS 
 
4.1 The procedure to be followed for the Review hearing is attached at Appendix 

F. 
 

Page 52



Review Application Report 

4.2 The amended guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 
was published in June 2014, paragraph 11 and the salient points that the 
Committee must have regard to for Review Applications are detailed below: 

 
“11.1 The proceedings set out in the 2003 Act for reviewing premises licences and club 
premises certificates represent a key protection for the community where problems 
associated with the licensing objectives occur after the grant or variation of a premises 
licence or club premises certificate. 
 
11.2 At any stage, following the grant of a premises licence or club premises certificate, a 
responsible authority, or any other person, may ask the licensing authority to review 
the licence or certificate because of a matter arising at the premises in connection with 
any of the four licensing objectives. 
 
11.10 Where authorised persons and responsible authorities have concerns about problems 
identified at premises, it is good practice for them to give licence holders early warning of 
their concerns and the need for improvement, and where possible they should advise the 
licence or certificate holder of the steps they need to take to address those concerns. A 
failure by the holder to respond to such warnings is expected to lead to a decision to apply 
for a review. Co-operation at a local level in promoting the licensing objectives should be 
encouraged and reviews should not be used to undermine this co-operation.” 
 
Powers of a licensing authority on the determination of a review 
 
11.16 The 2003 Act provides a range of powers for the licensing authority which it may 
exercise on determining a review where it considers them appropriate for the promotion of 
the licensing objectives. 
 
11.17 The licensing authority may decide that the review does not require it to take any 
further steps appropriate to promote the licensing objectives. In addition, there is 
nothing to prevent a licensing authority issuing an informal warning to the licence 
holder and/or to recommend improvement within a particular period of time. It is 
expected that licensing authorities will regard such informal warnings as an important 
mechanism for ensuring that the licensing objectives are effectively promoted and that 
warnings should be issued in writing to the licence holder. 
 
11.18 However, where responsible authorities such as the police or environmental health 
officers have already issued warnings requiring improvement – either orally or in 
writing – that have failed as part of their own stepped approach to address concerns, 
licensing authorities should not merely repeat that approach and should take this into 
account when considering what further action is appropriate. 
 
 
11.20 In deciding which of these powers to invoke, it is expected that licensing authorities 
should so far as possible seek to establish the cause or causes of the concerns that 
the representations identify. The remedial action taken should generally be directed at 
these causes and should always be no more than an appropriate and proportionate 
response. 
 
11.21 For example, licensing authorities should be alive to the possibility that the removal 
and replacement of the designated premises supervisor may be sufficient to remedy a 
problem where the cause of the identified problem directly relates to poor management 
decisions made by that individual. 
 
11.22 Equally, it may emerge that poor management is a direct reflection of poor company 
practice or policy and the mere removal of the designated premises supervisor may 
be an inadequate response to the problems presented. Indeed, where subsequent 

Page 53



Review Application Report 

review hearings are generated by representations, it should be rare merely to remove 
a succession of designated premises supervisors as this would be a clear indication of 
deeper problems that impact upon the licensing objectives. 
 
11.23 Licensing authorities should also note that modifications of conditions and exclusions 
of licensable activities may be imposed either permanently or for a temporary period of 
up to three months. Temporary changes or suspension of the licence for up to three 
months could impact on the business holding the licence financially and would only be 
expected to be pursued as an appropriate means of promoting the licensing objectives.  
So, for instance, a licence could be suspended for a weekend as a means of deterring 
the holder from allowing the problems that gave rise to the review to happen again. 
However, it will always be important that any detrimental financial impact that may result from 
a licensing authority’s decision is appropriate and proportionate to the promotion of the 
licensing objectives. But where premises are found to be trading irresponsibly, the licensing 
authority should not hesitate, where appropriate to do so, to take tough action to tackle the 
problems at the premises and, where other measures are deemed insufficient, to revoke the 
licence.” 

 
4.3 Paragraphs 11.24 to 11.28 of the section 182 Guidance are also relevant as 

they cover reviews arising in connection with crime. 
 
4.4 The committee should also consider and make use of the ‘Yellow and Red 

Card’ system as directed and recommended by The Department of Culture, 
Media and Sport (DCMS) and as approved by the Licensing Committee. 

 
4.5 The committee must also have regard to Slough Borough Council’s Statement 

of Licensing Policy 2014-2015, sub-paragraphs 6.1 to 6.8 of which cover the 
authority’s general approach to licence conditions. 

 
5. LICENCE SUMMARY  
 
5.1 Baylis House which operates as a hotel, conference and banqueting venue  

holds a Premises Licence (number PL 4603) (Appendix A)  and the named 
Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) is Mr Sandeep Shetty, who holds a 
Personal Licence (number H03349) issued by Hounslow Borough Council. 

 
5.2 The DPS is responsible for the day to day management of the premises. 
 
5.3 The premises licence authorises the carrying out of the licensable activities as 

follows: 
 

E - Performance of live music (Indoors & Outdoors) 
F - Playing of recorded music (Indoors & Outdoors) 
G - Performance of Dance (Indoors & Outdoors) 
H - Entertainment of a similar description to that falling within E, F, or G 
(Indoors & Outdoors) 
 
The times the Licence authorises the above Licensable Activities are: 
 
Sunday to Thursday:    09.00am    01.00am 
Friday and Saturday:    09.00am    03.00am 
Christmas Day:                 Noon   10.30pm 
New Years Eve:           10.00am    Midnight 

Page 54



Review Application Report 

Except when New Years Eve falls on a Sunday when the permitted hours 
begin from 12.00 hours. 
New Years Day:         Midnight    Midnight 
Licensable Activities including live and recorded music or dance will not be 
played in the open air after 23.00 hours            
 
 
I - Late night refreshment (Indoors & Outdoors) 
 
The times the Licence authorises this activity are: 
 
Sunday to Thursday:     11.00pm    01.00am 
Friday and Saturday:     11.00pm    03.00am 
New Years Eve:             11.00pm    05.00am 
New years Day:              11.00pm    Midnight 
 
J - Supply of alcohol for consumption ON and OFF the premises 
 
The times the Licence authorises this activity are: 
 
Sunday to Thursday:    09.00am    01.00am 
Friday and Saturday:    09.00am    03.00am 
Christmas Day:                  Noon   11.30pm 
New Years Eve:           10.00am    Midnight 
Except when New Years Eve falls on a Sunday when the permitted hours 
begin from 12.00 hours. 

           New Years Day:           Midnight    Midnight 
 

A copy of the current Premises Licence is attached at Appendix A. 
 
6. REASON FOR REFERRAL: REWIEW APPLICATION  
 
6.1 The Applicant asking for the Review is Debie Pearmain - Police Licensing 

Officer on behalf of Thames Valley Police.  Any responsible authority may 
apply for a review of a premises licence if it is concerned about the licensed 
activities.   

 
6.2 The Applicant has asked that all current conditions on the Premises Licence 

are removed and replaced with 24 new conditions as detailed within the 
Review application. 

 
6.3 The full Review Application and supporting evidence sent with it are contained 

at Appendices B and C. 
 
6.4 The Licensing Authority is satisfied that this application for Review meets the 

appropriate legislative requirements within the Licensing Act 2003 and is 
therefore a valid application to be considered by the Licensing Sub-Committee 

 
6.3 Responsible authorities may ask for a review because of a matter or matters 

arising at the premises in connection with any of the four licensing objectives.  
Such matters may include for example:  

 

Page 55



Review Application Report 

• 1 or more sales to minors of alcohol or any other age restricted product 

• Reports of anti-social behaviour linked to the premises 

• Evidence of proxy sales 

• Sales of alcohol outside trading hours 

• Other crime and disorder connected to the premises 

• Sales of counterfeit or substitute goods 

• Offences under the Licensing Act 2003 including breach of conditions 
 
6.5 The grounds for the Review are: 
 

1. The Prevention of Crime and Disorder,  
2. The Protection of Children from Harm,  

 
6.6 The grounds for the Review Application are based on the following allegations: 
 
6.7 A serious incident occurred at Baylis House in January 2014 involving two 

young females having sex with two older men at the hotel with one girl  
           being described as ‘comatose and lifeless’. The matter was reported to the 
           night-staff who did no more than move the two men with the vulnerable 
           females to other rooms at the hotel. The night-staff did not or attempt to 
           report the incident to the Police who are now investigating two cases of 
           possible rape. 
 
 
7 BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
7.1.1 Thames Valley Police and Licensing Officers initially  met with the 

management from  Baylis House to discuss the incident in January 2014, and 
that it was felt new conditions would be needed to be imposed on the 
Premises Licence either voluntarily by way of a minor variation being made or 
if not by way of a Review application being brought.. 

 
7.1.2 Thames Valley Police and Licensing Officers reviewed the current conditions 

and prepared 24 new proposed conditions to replace the existing conditions 
on the Premises Licence and to put in place measures to prevent any similar 
incident occurring to that in January of this year. The officers then met further 
with the Baylis House management for the conditions to be agreed.  

 
7.1.3 There was a delay in Baylis House responding to the repeated requests by 

Thames Valley Police for the proposed conditions to be agreed. As no formal 
response or agreement was received the Review application was brought on 
1st July 2014. 

 
7.1.4 Following the Review being brought a further meeting between Thames Valley 

Police, SBC Licensing and Baylis House and their legal representative was 
held on 11th July 2014.  All parties now currently agree with all the proposed 
conditions however Baylis House do not agree with proposed condition 23 
with regards to verification of individuals booking rooms and records of 
identification being retained for a minimum period of 6 months. Thames Valley 
Police are satisfied that condition 23 is a relevant and necessary requirement 
to be put in place to address their concerns over the serious incident and 
repetition of such an incident that occurred in January of this year and to 

Page 56



Review Application Report 

promote the two licensing objectives of the Prevention of Crime and Disorder 
and most importantly the Protection of Children from Harm. 

 
7.1.5 On 11th August 2014, Thames Valley Police have submitted additional 

information relevant to the review application.  The information relates to a 
report made to the Police of a missing 15 year old girl who has been assessed 
as vulnerable to child sexual exploitation (CSE).  Information provided stated 
that she had been sighted at Baylis House the previous day.   

 
7.1.6 The missing girl was not found at the premises however Police Officers were 

taken to a room occupied by persons who had become a concern to hotel 
staff.  Five young men were found in the room (no females) and due to the 
state of the room (drinks had been thrown around) Police Officers escorted 
them from the premises.   

 
7.1.7 Police have reviewed CCTV at the premises from earlier in the day.  A young 

women is seen with an Asian male (believed to be from the group ejected later 
that evening) entering the premises by a side or back door.  At present, Police 
have been unable identify the female and are therefore unable to verify her 
age.  Full details of the Police report are attached at Appendix G.  

 
8 REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED 
 
8.1 Responses have been received by Responsible Authorities to the Review 

Application.  
 
8.2 Dr Angela Snowing - Assistant Director of Public Health has responded 

supporting the application as she was the officer first notified of the CSE (Child 
Sexual Exploitation) case and reported the matter to the Police. The full 
response is at attached at Appendix D. 

 
8.3 Mr John  Nixson - Head of Safeguarding & Quality Assurance has responded 

supporting the application detailing that - The proposed licence conditions are 
appropriate and proportionate and will make a contribution to the disruption 
and prevention of Child sexual Exploitation. He further states that- The 
conditions will also contribute to collation of intelligence to support prosecution 
of perpetrators of Child Sexual Exploitation in the event of further incidents at 
this venue. The full response is attached at Appendix E. 

 
8.4 Responses have also been received from Royal Berkshire Fire and Rescue 
           Service, Trading Standards and Community Safety with comments on the 
           application. 
 
8.5 Additional information has also been received by the legal representative 
           acting for Baylis House which is attached at Appendix H. 
 
APPENDICES 
 
Appendix A  -  Copy of Premises Licence for Baylis House PL4603 
 
Appendix B  -  Review Application 
 

Page 57



Review Application Report 

Appendix C  -  Supporting information (sent with and part of the Review Application) 
 
Appendix D  -  Response / Representation from Dr Angela Snowling 
  
Appendix E  -  Response / Representation from John Nixson  
 
Appendix F  -  Procedure to be followed for Review hearing 
 
Appendix G  - Additional information submitted by Thames Valley Police  
 
Appendix H  - Additional information supplied on behalf of Baylis House 
 
Background papers 
 
- The Licensing Act 2003 
 
- Guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 - (Revised June 

2014) 
 
- Regulations (cited as the Licensing Act 2003 ([Various]) Orders 2005 
 
- Slough Borough Council Statement of Licensing Policy - December 2013 
 
- DCMS Guidance – Red and Yellow Card System 
 

Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 
Licensing Team, My Council, Landmark Place, High Street, Slough SL1 1JL 

APPENDIX B 
Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises certificate  

under the Licensing Act 2003 
 

 
PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST 

 
Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form. 
If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals.  In all cases ensure that your 
answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink.  Use additional sheets if necessary. 
You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records. 
 
Debie Pearmain, Police Licensing Officer apply for the review of a premises licence 
under section 51 or – apply for the review of a club premises certificate under section 87 
of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises described in Part 1 below (delete as 
applicable) 
 
Part 1 – Premises or club premises details 
 

Postal address of premises or club premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference 
or description 
 
Baylis House 
Stoke Poges Lane 
 
 

Post town  
Slough 

Post code (if known) 
SL1 3PB 

 

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if known) 

 
Baylis House Limited 
 
 
 

Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known) 

 
PL 4603 
 
 
 
Part 2 – Applicant Details 
 
I am 
 Please tick � yes 
 

1) an interested party [please complete (A) or (B) below] �  
 
 (a) a person living in the vicinity of the premises �  
 
 (b) a body representing persons living in the vicinity of the premises �  
 

Page 75



2 

 (c) a person involved in business in the vicinity of the premises �  
 
 (d) a body representing persons involved in business in the  �  
  vicinity of he premises 
 

2) a responsible authority [please complete (C) below] �  
 
3) a member of the club to which this application relates �  
 [please complete (A) below] 
 
 
(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in as applicable) 
 
   

Mr   Mrs   Miss   Ms   Other title  
         (for example, Rev)  
 

Surname  First names 

   
 
   Please tick� yes 
    

I am 18 years old or over  

 
Current address  

 
 
 
 

 

Post Town   Post code  
 

Daytime contact telephone number  
 

E-mail address 
(optional) 

 

 
(B) DETAILS OF OTHER APPLICANT 
 

Name and address 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Telephone number (if any) 
 
 
E-mail (optional) 
 
 
 

Page 76



3 

 
(C) DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY APPLICANT 
 

Name and address 
 
Debie Pearmain, Police Licensing Officer 
Windsor Police Station 
Alma Road 
Windsor 
Berkshire 
 
 
 
Telephone number (if any) 
01753 835571 
 
E-mail (optional) 
 
Debie.pearmain@thamesvalley.pnn.police.uk 
 
 
This application to review relates to the following licensing objective(s) 
 
 Please tick �  one or more boxes Y 

(1) the prevention of crime and disorder √ 

(2) public safety � 

(3) the prevention of public nuisance � 

(4) the protection of children from harm � 

 
Please state the ground(s) for review (please read guidance note 1) 
 
Thames Valley Police are requesting the review of Baylis House, Stoke Poges Lane, Slough 
premise licence under the Prevention of Crime and Disorder and the Protection of Children from 
Harm licensing objectives. 
 
Mr Sandeep Shetty is the Designated Premises Supervisor.  
 
I have detailed the relevant incidents that have progressed to this review application. 
 
30/04/2014 
Appointment letter sent to the DPS, Sandeep Shetty and Harjap Singh Sandhu, Company 
Secretary, requesting they attend Windsor Police Station on Thursday 15th May 2014 to discuss 
a licensing issue. 
Letters dated 30/04/2014 refers 
 
15/05/2014 
Licensing meeting with Debie Pearmain, Police Licensing Officer, PC Newton, Thames Valley 
Police, Rachael Rumney, Senior Licensing Officer, SBC, Melanie Sagar, Licensing Assistant, 
SBC, Dr Rahul Chauhan, Director, Sandeep Shetty, DPS and Ian Faithfull, General Manager. 
Meeting arranged to discuss the Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE) case, which took place at the 
Hotel earlier this year. PC Newton outlined the ongoing case, whereby a man had booked a 
room at the Hotel online using a debit card with no ID checks being conducted on this person. 
Guests next door to this man had reported to staff, ongoing disturbances of shouting, banging 
and the playing of loud music, throughout the night. The complainants could also hear 

Page 77



4 

conversations and voices of 2 young girls coming from the room. On opening their room door 
the complainants witnessed one young girl, described as ‘comatosed and lifeless’, being 
propped up against the corridor wall by an older man who was having intercourse with her. A 
second unknown man was also present with the second young girl in the same corridor. This 
activity was also reported to Hotel staff who apologised to the complainants but simply moved 
the men and the vulnerable underage girls to other rooms in the Hotel. 
Thames Valley Police are currently still investigating 2 possible rapes against the 2 vulnerable 
girls concerned or involved. 
Minutes dated 15/05/2014 refers 
 
15/05/2014 
Email from Debie Pearmain to Ian Faithfull, General Manager, requesting Rachael Rumney, 
SBC and I attend the Hotel on Wednesday 21st June and discuss proposed conditions with the 
DPS. 
Email dated 15/05/2014 refers 
 
21/05/2014 
Licensing meeting at Baylis House, with Sandeep Shetty, Ian Faithfull, Advisor who works in the 
Hotel Industry, Rachael Rumney and Debie Pearmain. Meeting arranged to discuss and go 
through the proposed conditions to be placed on the licence and conditions that can be taken 
off. We went through all the 24 conditions and were informed that they were not happy with 
condition number 23: “The identity of all individuals who have made a room booking and/or are 
staying as a hotel guest, must be verified and a copy of their photographic ID taken. The copy 
must be kept for a minimum of 6 months and be made available for inspection by an authorised 
Officer or Police Officer.  
This condition was discussed and the reasoning for it explained. We were informed that they 
were happy to accept the condition except for Corporate bookings. They felt that requesting ID 
for any Corporate bookings would have a major impact on the business. I stated that we cannot 
say who would or would not be capable of a Child Sexual Exploitation case. I informed all that I 
would be speaking to Inspector Cosham who was fully aware of this incident and would update 
them of his decision in relation to the condition. It was made clear at this meeting failure to 
agree with the conditions would result in Thames Valley Police applying to review the premise 
licence under the Prevention of Crime and Disorder and Protection of Children from Harm 
licensing objectives. 
Gen40 dated 21/05/2014 refers 
Detailed list of proposed conditions  
 
23/05/2014 
Email from Debie Pearmain to Ian Faithfull. Email details the conditions requested and in 
particular condition number 23. Inspector Cosham still requests this condition is placed on the 
licence. An alternative to this was suggested, an ID Scanner.  Ian was asked to pass onto the 
DPS and Managing Director of Baylis House and that failure to agree to the requested 
conditions would result in Thames Valley Police applying to review the premises licence. I 
requested a response to this by Friday 30th May 2014. 
Email dated 23/05/2014 refers 
 
29/05/2014 
Email from Ian Faithfull requesting an extension of one more week to speak to the Directors and 
for them to be made fully aware of the requests, as they have been away. 
Email from Debie Pearmain dated 30/05/2014 to Ian Faithfull giving them one more week until 
Monday 9th June 2014. 
Email dated 29/05/2014 refers 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 78



5 

 
09/06/2014 
Email from Ian Faithfull to Debie Pearmain with an update of progress in relation to the 
proposed conditions. The email states ‘Please accept this email as neither disputing nor 
accepting the conditions until I have had a chance to confirm with my Directors’. Again there is 
mention of the condition relating to ID. 
Email dated 09/06/2014 refers 
 
 
11/06/2014 
Email from Debie Pearmain to Ian Faithfull informing him that his email dated 9th June 2014 has 
been forwarded to the Inspector and he is informed that if I am instructed to start the review 
paperwork, this will be done. 
Email dated 11/06/2014 refers 
 
23/06/2014 
Crime Reduction Advisor, Ms Chalmers and Debie Pearmain attended the venue for Ms 
Chalmers to conduct a crime reduction survey. 
Gen40 dated 23/06/2014 refers 
 
23/06/2014 
Crime Prevention Survey Report conducted by Ms Anne Chalmers. 
Crime Prevention Report dated 23/06/2014 refers 
 
24/06/2014 
Email from Debie Pearmain to Premise Licence Holder, DPS and General Manager informing 
all that due to the failure to agree to all the requested conditions, Thames Valley Police will now 
be applying to review the premise licence under the Prevention of Crime and Disorder and 
Protection of Children From Harm licensing objectives. 
Email dated 24/06/2014 refers 
 
 
You can see from the above details that Slough Borough Council Licensing Department and 
Thames Valley Police Licensing Department have tried to work with the Management, Premise 
Licence Holder and DPS at this venue. Thames Valley Police have no other option but to apply 
to review the premise licence. The Premise Licence Holder and DPS must take full 
responsibility and be showing due diligence as far as possible to ensure that the licensing 
objectives are not undermined. There is clearly a Safeguarding issue at this premise. All staff 
should be fully committed in trying to stop any further crimes and ensure that any vulnerable, 
under age persons are safeguarded.  
 
Thames Valley Police request that all existing conditions on the licence are removed and the 
following  conditions be added to the premises licence: 
 
 

1. Door supervisors will be issued with multi-channel radios capable of communicating with 
all other door supervisors working at the premises, the designated premises supervisor 
and Town Centre radio link and/or Slough Borough Council’s CCTV control room. 

 

2. A door supervisor register must be kept which details the full name of the door supervisor 
and the date and times they started and finished. 

 

3. Door supervisors are required at the venue during any events being held at the premises 
from 19:00 hours (a ratio of 1 door supervisor per 100 guests) until all patrons have left the 
premises.   

 
4. Where there are 5 or more door supervisors at least one must be female. 

 

Page 79



6 

5. An incident register will be kept to record all incidents of disorder and refusals of 
admittance at the premise.  The manager and member of staff involved in the incident 
must sign off each entry. The incident register must remain on the premises at all times. 

 

 

6. All seizures of controlled drugs must be logged, held securely and the Police notified of   
the seizure.   

 

7. The CCTV system must be working to the satisfaction of Thames Valley Police and the 
Licensing Authority. 

 

8. The CCTV system must cover all areas of the premises where licensable activities take 
place and all the corridors where guest bedrooms are located.   

 
9. CCTV cameras must be in operation at all public entrance and exit points of the premises. 

 

10. CCTV recordings will be maintained for a period of 28 days. 

 

11. If the CCTV equipment fails, the Police and the Licensing Authority will be informed 
immediately by telephone and immediate steps will be taken to put the equipment back 
into working order. 

 
12. A notice will be displayed at all entrance points of the premises advising that CCTV is in 

operation. 

 

13. DPS and/or nominated person to be trained on how to work the CCTV system to the 
standard where the nominated person can download any potential evidence required by 
Thames Valley Police, Local Authority Licensing Officers or relevant Agencies. 

 
14. DPS and/or nominated person is responsible for supplying the necessary media (discs, 

data stick) containing any downloaded content. 
 

15. The premises will operate a challenge 25 age verification policy in relation to the sale of 
alcohol.   

 
16. A Personal Licence holder must be present at the premises when alcohol is being sold or 

supplied and when regulated entertainment is taking place. 
 

17. A written log along with a copy of each individual’s personal licence must be kept and 
maintained.   

 
18. Live, recorded music or dance cannot take place within the grounds (outdoors) of the 

premise after 23:00 hours.  This includes any marquee or other temporary structure.   
 

19. Signage must be displayed at all public exit points to encourage patrons to leave in an 
orderly and responsible manner.   

 
20. The use of polycarbonate or non breakable glasses at any events held at the premises will 

be at the discretion of the management. 
 

21. All members of staff are to complete Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE) training.  Training 
records including the staff members name and date of training are to be maintained and 
kept at the premises at all times.  Training records must be available for inspection by an 
authorised officer or police officer.  

 
22. CSE refresher training must be provided to all members of staff on an annual basis and 

logged in the training records. 
 

23. The identity of all individuals who have made a room booking and/or are staying as a hotel 
guest, must be verified and a copy of their photographic ID taken.  The copy must be kept 
for a minimum of 6 months and be kept in accordance with the Personal Data Retention 

Page 80



7 

Policy and be made available for inspection by an authorised officer or Police Officer.  
 

 
 

24. A Crime Reduction survey is to be carried out by Thames Valley Police and the 
recommendations of the survey are to be adhered to.   

 
Ms Rachael Rumney, Senior Licensing Officer, Slough Borough Council, Ms Anne Chalmers, 
Crime Reduction Officer and Inspector Cosham will be attending the review hearing to support 
this application. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 81



8 

 

Please provide as much information as possible to support the application (please read 
guidance note 2) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 82



9 

 
 Please tick �  Yes 

Have you made an application for review relating to this premises before � 
 
If yes, please state the date of that application 
  Day Month Year 
         

 
If you have made representations before relating to this premises please state what they 
were and when you made them 
 
 
N/A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 83



10 

 
 Please tick �  Yes 
 

• I have sent copies of this form and enclosures to the responsible  � 
authorities and the premises licence holder or club holding the club 
premises certificate, as appropriate. 

 

• I understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements my  � 
application will be rejected  

 

IT IS AN OFFENCE, LIABLE ON CONVICTION TO A FINE UP TO LEVEL 5 

ON THE STANDARD SCALE UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING 

ACT 2003 TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION 

WITH THIS APPLICATION 

 
Part 3 – Signatures (please read guidance note 3) 
 
Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent [please read 
guidance note 4].   If signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what capacity. 

Signature:  Debie Pearmain 

Date:           2ndt July 2014 

Capacity:  Police Licensing Officer 

 
Contact name (where not previously given) and address for correspondence associated 
with this application (please read guidance note 5) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Post town Post code 

 
 

Telephone number (if any) 
 
 

If you would prefer us to correspond with you using an e-mail address your e-mail 
address (optional). 

 
Notes for Guidance 
 
1. The ground(s) for review must be based on one of the licensing objectives. 
2. Please list any additional information or details for example dates of problems which are included in 

the grounds for review if available.   
3. The application form must be signed. 
4. An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided that they 

have actual authority to do so. 
5. This is the address we shall use to correspond with you about this application. 

Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



 
 

APPENDIX D 
Responsible Authority Representation Form 

 
Thames Valley Police, Royal Berkshire Fire and Rescue Service, Health and 
Safety Executive, Area Child Protection Committee, Slough Borough Council 
[SBC] Commercial Services (Health and Safety and Trading Standards), Planning 
and Development Control Services [SBC], Public Health Services [SBC]. 
 
 
APPLICATION DETAILS 
 
 
Name of Premises 
 

 
Baylis House 
 
 

 
Address of Premises 
& Tel: No. 
  
 

 
Stoke Poges Lane 
SL1 3PB 
 
 

 
Applicant Details 
(Name, address, Tel: 
No.) if different from 
above 
 

 
Debie Pearmain, Police Licencing Officer 
Windsor Police Station, Alma Road 
Windsor, Berkshire 
01753 835571 

 
Company Name (if 
different from Applicant) 
  
 

 
Thames Valley Police 
 
 
 

 
Application type 
(state fully) 
 

 
A review under the prevention of crime and disorder and the 
protection of harm to children licensing objectives 
 
 
 

 
Date Application 
received 
 

 
2nd July 2014 

 

Page 107



 
REPRESENTATION SUBMISSION 
 
                                                    Please tick  
   

There are no representations to the granting of this licence 

 

 

 
 
 

If you are making representations to the application identify which of the four 
licensing objectives  your representation relates to: 

Please detail your representation and the reason together with your supporting 
evidence, as appropriate.  (If replying by hard copy, please attach separate sheet(s) if 
necessary ).  

 

Prevention of Crime 
and Disorder 

 

 

Please tick 

√  
 

I support the evidence presented 

 

 

 

 

Public Safety 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

Prevention of Public 
Nuisance 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

Protection of Children 
from Harm 

 

√  I support the evidence presented 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 108



 

Please provide advice to the Licensing Sub-Committee on how you believe they 
should consider the representation.    

If appropriate, recommend conditions that could be added to the Licence to remedy 
your representation or other suggestions you would like the Licensing Sub-Committee 
to take into account.    

If replying by hard copy, please attach separate sheet(s), if necessary.  

Please refer to the Responsible Authority Guidance Note. 

 

I fully support the Police submission as I was the officer first notified of the CSE case 
and reported this to the police 

 

 

 

 

 

Name of Officer 
completing 
Representation 

Dr Angela Snowling 

Job Title Assistant Director of Public Health 

Name of Responsible 
Authority 

Assistant Director of Public Health, Slough Borough Council 

E-mail address: 

Tel: No. 

Angela.Snowling@slough.gov.uk 

01753 875142 

 
N.B. If you do make a representation you will be expected to attend the Licensing 

Sub-Committee hearing and any subsequent appeal proceedings. 
 
 
Signed: …Angela Snowling 
 
Dated: …  3rd July 2014 
 
Please return this form along with any additional sheets, if replying by hard copy to: 
 

The Licensing Team 
Public Protection Services 
Landmark Place 
High Street    
Slough    
SL1 1JL     Or  E-mail to Licensing@Slough.gov.uk
 

Page 109



This page is intentionally left blank



H/s/env/CH/LI/FORM –authority rep 

 
 

APPENDIX E 
Responsible Authority Representation Form 

 
Thames Valley Police, Royal Berkshire Fire and Rescue Service, Health and 
Safety Executive, Area Child Protection Committee, Slough Borough Council 
[SBC] Commercial Services (Health and Safety and Trading Standards), Planning 
and Development Control Services [SBC], Public Health Services [SBC]. 
 
 
APPLICATION DETAILS 
 

 
Name of Premises 
 

 
Baylis House (PL4603) 
 
 

 
Address of Premises 
& Tel: No. 
  
 

 
Stoke Poges Lane 
Slough 
SL1 3PB 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Applicant Details 
(Name, address, Tel: 
No.) if different from 
above 
 

 
Debbie Pearmain Police Licensing Officer 
Windsor Police Station 
Alma Road 
Windsor 
01753 835571 

 
Company Name (if 
different from Applicant) 
  
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Application type 
(state fully) 
 

 
Review of license 
 
 
 

 
Date Application 
received 
 

 
2.7.2014 

 

Page 111



H/s/env/CH/LI/FORM –authority rep 

 
REPRESENTATION SUBMISSION 
 
                                                    Please tick  
   

There are no representations to the granting of this licence 

 

 

 
 
 

If you are making representations to the application identify which of the four 
licensing objectives  your representation relates to: 

Please detail your representation and the reason together with your supporting 
evidence, as appropriate.  (If replying by hard copy, please attach separate sheet(s) if 
necessary ).  

 

Prevention of Crime 
and Disorder 

 

 

Please tick 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Public Safety 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

Prevention of Public 
Nuisance 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

Protection of Children 
from Harm 

 

 The incident of concern identified in the Police 
application for review of the license exemplifies the 
risks of Child Sexual Exploitation when inadequate 
preventive measures are in place 

There is potential for serious risk of harm to 
children and young people unless the issues are 
addressed as recommended 

Page 112



H/s/env/CH/LI/FORM –authority rep 

 

Please provide advice to the Licensing Sub-Committee on how you believe they 
should consider the representation.    

If appropriate, recommend conditions that could be added to the Licence to remedy 
your representation or other suggestions you would like the Licensing Sub-Committee 
to take into account.    

If replying by hard copy, please attach separate sheet(s), if necessary.  

Please refer to the Responsible Authority Guidance Note. 

The proposed license conditions are appropriate and proportionate and will make a 
contribution to the disruption and prevention of Child Sexual Exploitation.  

The conditions will also contribute to collation of intelligence to support prosecution of 
perpetrators of Child Sexual exploitation in the event of further incidents at this venue 

 

 

 

Name of Officer 
completing 
Representation 

John Nixson 

Job Title Head of Safeguarding & Quality Assurance  

Name of Responsible 
Authority 

Slough Local Safeguarding Children Board  

E-mail address: 

Tel: No. 

John.nixson@slough.gov.uk 

01753 875755 

 
N.B. If you do make a representation you will be expected to attend the Licensing 

Sub-Committee hearing and any subsequent appeal proceedings. 
 
Signed: submitted by e-mail 
 
Dated: …2.7.2014……… 
 
Please return this form along with any additional sheets, if replying by hard copy to: 
 

The Licensing Team 
Public Protection Services 
Landmark Place 
High Street    
Slough    

SL1 1JL     Or  E-mail to Licensing@Slough.gov.uk 

Page 113



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 

APPENDIX F 
 

PROCEDURE FOR LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 

 

1. The Chairman will open the meeting and introduce those present, including 
members of the Committee, and ensure that all parties are informed of the 
procedure to be followed. 

 
2. The Committee will consider any request made by a party for permission for a 

person other than his representation as stated in his notice that he intends to 
attend or be represented at the hearing. 

 
3. The Licensing Officer will introduce the report and outline the application. 
 
4. The police, responsible authorities and interested parties if represented at the 

Committee may present relevant facts. 
 
5. The Chairman will invite questions from the  
 

• Applicant or representative 

• Committee 
 
6. The applicant or representative will present his case and call any other persons 

invited to appear to make representations. 
 
7. The Chairman will invite questions from 
 

• The police, responsible authorities and interested parties  

• The Committee 
 
8. The police, responsible authorities and interested parties will make any closing 

remarks to the Committee if they so wish. 
 
9. The applicant or representative will make any closing remarks to the Committee if 

he so wishes. 
 
10. The Committee may then decide the matter in private in which case all persons 

other than the legal adviser and Committee Clerk will then withdraw from the 
meeting. 

 
11. The parties will be recalled and the Chairman will announce the Committee’s 

decision and the reasons for reaching that decision. 
 
 

Page 115



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Review Application Report 

`  

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
2nd September 2014 

  

 
 

 
LICENSING ACT 2003 

 
Application for:              Grant of a new premises licence 
 
Premises:                      GILL’S MEAT MARKET, 20 Parlaunt Road, Langley, SL3 8BB 
 
Applicant:                      Palwinder Singh GILL & Gurlal Singh GILL 
 
Reason for Referral:     Representations made   

 
 

 

 
 
1. CURRENT POSITION 
 
1.1 An application for a new premises licence has been made by Mr Palwinder Singh GILL 

and Gurlal Singh GILL, for 20 Parlaunt Road, Langley, SL3 8BB (a copy of the 
application is attached at Appendix A). 

 
1.2 In summary, the application is for the following licensable activities at the following 

times: 
 

Sale by retail of alcohol for consumption OFF the premises only: – 
Monday to Saturday: 08:00 – 23:00 
Sunday; 10:00 – 22:00 

 
2. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
2.1 The application is for the grant of a new premises licence, for a shop that is currently 

trading/selling meat and sandwiches. 
 
 
3.  REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED 
 
3.1  Three formal representations to the application have been received from the following 
 

• Other Persons 

 
3.2 Any person may make representations in relation to applications for the grant of a 
premises licence, so long as such representations relate to the licensing objectives and are 
not be frivolous or vexatious. 
 
3.3 The first representation was received on 22nd July 2014, raising concerns of noise and 
disruption from other pubs and shops already selling alcohol (full representation is attached 
as Appendix B).   
 
3.4 The second representation was received on 24th July 2014, strongly objecting to the 
premises licence being granted as there are already two licensed premises on the parade of 
shops, and do not feel that there is need for more, given the trouble they are already 
experiencing (full representation is attached as Appendix C) 

Page 133

AGENDA ITEM 6



Review Application Report 

 
3.5 The third representation was received on 4th August 2014, and strongly opposes to the 
grant of this licence due to the problems in the area (full representation is attached as 
Appendix D) 
 
3.6   Thames Valley Police have requested that the following conditions replace the 
conditions initially offered, to the grant of the premises licence: (see the formal request as 
Appendix E) 
 

(a) Digital CCTV monitoring system to be installed and maintained to Thames Valley 
Police standard (i.e. CCTV images are clear and of an evidential quality and the 
system clock should be set correctly and kept accurate) . Recordings to be kept 
securely for 31 days and made available to Police, Local Authority Licensing Officers 
or relevant Agencies on request. 

 
(b) Nominated person to be trained on how to work the CCTV system to the standard  

where the nominated person can download any potential evidence required by 
Thames Valley Police employees and Local Authority Licensing Officers. 

 

(c) Nominated person is responsible in supplying the necessary media (discs, 
data stick) containing any downloaded content.  

 
(d) Challenge 21/25 policy to be in place.  
 
(e) Refusals Register to be on the premises and kept up to date and made available 

upon the request of Police, Trading Standards Officer and Local Authority Licensing 
Officers. 
 

3.7 The applicant has agreed to replace the conditions with those requested by Thames 
Valley Police. 
 
4. RELEVANT GUIDANCE    
 
4.1 The Committee must have regard to the amended guidance issued in June 2014 under 

section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 and in particular Chapters 9 (Determining 
applications) and 10 (Conditions attached to premises licences).  Particular regard 
should be had to paragraphs 9.27 – 9.37 (hearings) and 9.38-40 (Determining actions 
that are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives). 

 
4.2 The Committee must also have regard to the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy 

2014-2019, including paragraph 4.27 (hours of sales in off licences). 
 
5. DETERMINATION – OPTIONS AVAILABLE TO THE COMMITTEE 
 
5.1 Following the hearing, having had regard to the representations made by the parties, 

the Committee must take such of the following steps as it considers appropriate for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives:  

 
1. Grant the application as it stands in which case it would be issued subject to 

the relevant mandatory conditions and conditions consistent with the 
applicant’s operating schedule. 

. 
2. Grant the application subject to the mandatory conditions and conditions 

consistent with the applicant’s operating schedule, but modified to the extent 
the Committee consider appropriate for the promotion of the licensing 
objections.  (Conditions are modified if any of them is altered or omitted or any 

Page 134



Review Application Report 

new condition is added. Conditions must be reasonable, proportionate and 
appropriate in order to meet one or more of the licensing objectives).  

 
3.  Exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities to which 

the application relates (for example excluding the sale of alcohol beyond a 
specified time). 

 
4. Refuse to specify a person in the licence as the premises supervisor. 
 
5. Refuse the application. 

 
 
APPENDICES 
 
Appendix ‘A’ - copy of premise licence application. 
 
Appendix ‘B’ – copy of the first formal representation. 
 
Appendix ‘C’ - copy of the second formal representation. 
 
Appendix ‘D’ – copy of third formal representation.. 
 
Appendix ‘E’ – copy of formal request from Thames Valley Police. 
 
 
Background papers 
 
- The Licensing Act 2003 
 
- Guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 (June 2014) 
 
- Regulations (cited as the Licensing Act 2003 ([Various]) Orders 2005 
 
- Slough Borough Council Statement of Licensing Policy – January 2014 
 
Contact Officer 
 
Nicola Keegan 
Assistant Licensing Officer 
Consumer Protection & Business Compliance 
01753 477338  

 

Page 135



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 159



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 161



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 163



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Guidance on Predetermination/ Predisposition - To Note
	3 Minutes of the Last Meeting held on 29th April 2014
	4 Premises Licence Review, Metro Food and Wine (Slough Ltd), 18 High Street, Slough
	Licensing Sub Cttee 02.09.14 Metro Food and Wine App A - readacted
	Licensing Sub Cttee 02.09.14 Metro Food and Wine App B - readacted
	Licensing Sub Cttee 02.09.14 Metro Food and Wine App C
	Licensing Sub Cttee 02.09.14 Metro Food and Wine App D - readacted
	Licensing Sub Cttee 02.09.14 Metro Food and Wine App E

	5 Premises Licence Review, Baylis House, Stoke Poges Lane, Slough, SL1 3PB
	Licensing Sub Cttee 02.09.14 Baylis house App A - readacted
	Licensing Sub Cttee 02.09.14 Baylis House Review App B
	Licensing Sub Cttee 02.09.14 App C - redacted
	Licensing Sub Cttee 02.09.14 Baylis House Review App D
	Licensing Sub Cttee-Baylis House Review -App E
	Licensing Sub Cttee 02.09.14 Baylis House Review -App F
	Licensing Sub Cttee 02.09.14 Baylis House Review App G
	Licensing Sub Cttee 02.09.14 Baylis house App H - redacted

	6 Application for new Premises Licence, Gill's Meat Market, 20 Parlaunt Road, Langley, SL3 8BB
	Licensing Sub Cttee 02.09.14 Gills Meat Market App A - readacted
	Licensing Sub Cttee 02.09.14 Gills Meat Market App B - readacted
	Licensing Sub Cttee 02.09.14 Gills Meat Market App C - readacted
	Licensing Sub Cttee 02.09.14 Gills Meat Market App D - readacted
	LIcensing Sub Cttee 02.09.14 Gills Meat Market App E




